ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE LABOR AND COMVERCE STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 7, 2014
3:24 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Kurt O son, Chair
Representative Lora Reinbold, Vice Chair
Representative M ke Chenaul t
Representati ve Bob Herron
Represent ati ve Dan Saddl er
Represent ati ve Andy Josephson

VEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Charisse MIlett
Representative Crai g Johnson

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO 357

"An Act relating to the purchase of alcoholic beverages at a
club and to access by certain persons under 21 years of age to a
club's licensed prem ses when al coholic beverages are present.”

- MOVED HB 357 OUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 254
"An Act relating to powers of attorney; relating to the uniform
probate code; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED CSHB 254(L&C) OUT OF COMM TTEE

HOUSE BILL NO 336
"An Act relating to sales of alcoholic beverages near a schoo
or church.”

- MOVED HB 336 OQUT OF COWM TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 370

"An Act relating to enployer drug testing; requiring the Al aska
Wor kers' Conpensation Board to adopt regulations relating to the
prescription of controlled substances to enployees; and limting
the prescription of controlled substances to enpl oyees."

- BILL HEARI NG CANCELED

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -1- April 7, 2014



PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 357
SHORT TI TLE: ACCESS TO LI CENSED PREM SES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) SADDLER

02/ 26/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 26/ 14 (H) L&C

04/ 07/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 254

SHORT TITLE: POAERS OF ATTORNEY
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) HUGHES, GRUENBERG

01/ 21/ 14 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/17/ 14

01/ 21/ 14 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 14 (H) L&C, JUD

04/ 07/ 14 (H L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

BILL: HB 336

SHORT TITLE: ALCOHOL SALES NEAR SCHOOL/ CHURCH
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) TARR

02/ 24/ 14 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 24/ 14 (H) L&C

03/ 26/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

03/ 26/ 14 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 26/ 14 (H) M NUTE( L&C)

04/ 07/ 14 (H) L&C AT 3:15 PM BARNES 124

W TNESS REG STER

SHI RLEY COTE, Director

Al cohol i c Beverage Control Board (ABC Board)

Departnment of Commerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnment ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions regardi ng HB 357.

G NGER BLAI DELL, Staff

Representati ve Shel |l ey Hughes

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of one of the joint
prime sponsors of HB 254, Representative Shell ey Hughes.

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 2- April 7, 2014



Al aska State Legislature
Juneau, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as joint prime sponsor of HB 254.

KEN HELANDER, Director for Advocacy

AARP Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 254.

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prinme sponsor of HB 336.

SHI RLEY COTE, Director

Al cohol i c Beverage Control Board (ABC Board)

Depart ment of Commrerce, Conmunity & Econom c Devel opnent ( DCCED)
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions regarding HB 336.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
3:24:14 PM

CHAIR KURT OLSON called the House Labor and Commerce Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:24 p.m Represent ati ves
Josephson, Saddl er, Reinbold, Herron, and O son were present at
the call to order. Representative Chenault arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 357- ACCESS TO LI CENSED PREM SES

3:24: 36 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 357, "An Act relating to the purchase of
al coholic beverages at a club and to access by certain persons
under 21 years of age to a club's licensed prem ses when
al cohol i c beverages are present."”

3:24:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER, speaking as prime sponsor of HB 357,
explained that this bill is an access bill. He expl ai ned that
HB 357 does not allow anyone under the 21 to drink alcohol

Instead, the bill could be considered an access bill, with two
el ements. Section 1 relates to service nenbers over the age of

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 3- April 7, 2014



21. This bill makes it easier for them and their spouses to
enj oy conpanionship in the clubhouses of service and patriotic
clubs, such as the Veterans of Foreign Wars (VFW or Anerican
Legion. These are great organi zations where veterans and active
duty soldiers can relax with their friends and spouses and enjoy
t he special understanding and support from others who have been
there and wunderstand the rigors of mlitary |life. The
| egi sl ature recogni zes these values, and since 2006, active duty
personnel over the age of 21 can enter such clubs using their

mlitary identification cards (IDs). He referred to page 1
line 10 of HB 357, which limts access to special occasions,
noting this bill renmoves that limtation.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said this bill allows spouses ages 21 and
over, as well. Section 2 relates to soldiers under the age of
21 and allows themto enter licensed prem ses of patriotic clubs
if they are nenbers or if they are guests of nenbers. Again, he
reiterated that this bill does not allow anyone under the age of
21 to drink alcohol. He comented that mlitary commanders wl|
sonetinmes use these clubs to hold off-base commanders calls to
wel conre soldiers home, to give them a sendoff, or to share
important information with them He surm sed that dividing the
young and ol der sol diers could erode norale. He said this bil

woul d all ow soldiers under the age of 21 to enter such clubs if

they are nenbers or guests of nenbers. Section 3 provides
conform ng |anguage regarding the allowance for club adm ssion
granted in Section 2, enphasizing that this bill does not permt

underage soldiers to drink alcohol, but rather clarifies that
sol diers over the age of 21 and their spouses don't have to wait
for a special occasion to visit patriotic clubs. It would
further clarify that soldiers under the age of 21 can visit if
they are club nenbers or guests. He suggested that show ng
support for this bill would show that the |egislature wants to
accommodate the special needs of the young nmen and wonmen in
uni form who defend our freedom

3:27:37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD remarked that this allows not only the
spouse but also for someone under the age of 21 to visit the
est abl i shnment .

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answer ed yes.

3:28:21 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -4- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked the differences between patriotic
clubs and a regul ar restaurant or bar that serves al cohol.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER responded that Al aska |law allows access
to persons under the age of 21 to enter if acconpanied by an
adult, but it does not allow themto drink.

3:29: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether sone fraternization rules
were unique to the mlitary, but he assuned that those rules can
coexi st under the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER answered that this bill does not address
fraternization

3:29: 33 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 357.

3:29:54 PM

SHI RLEY COTE, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC
Boar d), Depar t ment of Commer ce, Communi ty &  Econom c
Devel opnent, said she was available for questions and the board
was neutral on the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whet her she had any concerns.

MS. COTE answered that underage persons are not allowed to drink
on the prem ses.

3:31: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to page 2, line 16 of HB 357

which read, in part, "(3) the person is under the age of 16
years, is acconpanied by a person over the age of 21 years, the
parent or guardian of the underage person consents, the prem ses
are designed by the board as a restaurant for the purpose of
this section, and the person enters and remains only for
dining...." She asked whether the board is confortable wth
t hi s | anguage.

M5. COTE answered yes; plus she pointed out added |anguage that
states the person is permtted on the premses under AS

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 5- April 7, 2014



04.11.110(g), which is the club license. Thus, the club would
be treated in a simlar fashion to the restaurant.

3:32: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked how parents would give perm ssion
for youth to be on prem ses.

MS. COTE expl ai ned perm ssion would happen in the sanme way that
it currently happens with restaurants. In the event the ABC
Board receives conplaints about underage drinking, the board
woul d investigate this activity. Additionally, she stated that
parents or guardians consent to coaches bringing kids to have
pizza; but it is up to the school and the restaurant |icensee to
ensure that the activity is in conpliance with the | aw.

3:33: 01 PM

CHAIR OLSON pointed out that establishnments also have 1iquor
i censes [and revocation] could be a "heavy hammer."

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER said that the |anguage in paragraph (3)
that Representative Reinbold highlighted is existing statute and
this bill does not change the | aw for peopl e under 16.

3:33:26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD related a scenario in which VFW would
change its atnosphere to nore of a "Denny's" type restaurant.
She did not see letters of support and wondered iif any
controversy exists.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER referred to a letter of support from a
former communed state comander of the VFW and from the
commander of post 10029 in nmenbers' packets. He enphasized that
VFWs are used as famly neeting places. He recalled the Eagle
Ri ver post 9785 facility frequently rents out its downstairs for
public events although the upstairs has a |icensed prem se. He
rem nded nenbers that this bill does not pertain to person under
the age of 16 accessing |licensed prem ses.

3:34: 30 PM
REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD acknowl edged she has been to nmany

events, but she said she has always been a guest and has been
invited to attend. She wanted to be certain the people who

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 6- April 7, 2014



frequent these facilities are confortable with this and it
sounds like that is the case.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related that he was in Eagle River for
the Vietnam Veteran's welcone hone day cerenony and was
encouraged to pursue this bill, thus there has been interest in
his home town for the bill.

3:35:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether this bill would include
the El ks or Moose club or only to mlitary affiliations.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that a
patriotic license is distinct fromthe fraternal organi zations.

M5. COTE explained that the club license authorizes a club or
organi zation, which is a <club for fraternal organization,
patriotic organization, or social organization that has been
chartered by a state or national organization for a period of
two consecutive years prior to an application for a |I|icense
under the section. O it could be chartered by the nationa
organi zation that has maintained a chartered club or
organi zation for 20 years in the state. Thus, if a club neets
either one of those criteria, it can have a club |license.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said it sounds |like the answer is yes.
3:36:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the [Benevolent and
Protective Order of] Elks Cub and {Loyal Order of] Mose club
fall under this rubric.

M5. COTE answered yes.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report HB 357 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not es. There being no objection, HB 357 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standi ng Comrittee.

3:37:17 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from3:37 p.m to 3:40 p. m

HB 254- PONERS OF ATTORNEY

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -7- April 7, 2014



3:40: 41 PM

CHAI R CLSON announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 254, "An Act relating to powers of attorney;
relating to the wuniform probate code; and providing for an
effective date."

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 254 |abeled 28-LS1057\U, Bannister,
3/6/14, [Version U as the working docunent.

CHAI R OLSON obj ected for the purpose of discussion.
3:41: 14 PM

G NGER BLAIDELL, Staff, Representative Shelley Hughes, Al aska
State Legislature, explained the changes in Version U  She
stated that the bill is lengthy and technical. The sponsor
decided to file the bill just prior to the filing deadline and
to make technical corrections to the bill later, which were
i ncorporated into Version U. The power of attorney bill does
primarily four things, she explained. First, page 2 outlines
the power of attorney structure so the principal, who has the
assets, is nore likely to consider each type of financial power
that is being awarded to the agent, who will be acting on their
behal f. Additionally, referring to page 27, |anguage was added
to inprove the ability for an agent to be renoved of his/her
powers in the event dishonesty or a breach of the agreenent
occurs. Second, a new section on page 28 specifies the agent's
duties and it specifically identifies the duties of a person who
obtains the power of attorney. Third, page 32, proposed Section
24, outlines the criteria for acceptance of power of attorney.
Fourth, the |anguage on page 34 was added that outlines the
steps taken when a power of attorney is termnated or if the
agent resigns, which previously was not clearly defined.

3:43: 20 PM

MS. BLAI SDELL conmented that |anguage is updated throughout the
bill so disability was replaced with incapacity. For exanpl e,
there may be a nunber of instances in which a person may not be
capable of making financial decisions due to the person being
out of the country, mssing, or tenporarily injured. Thus,
incapacity was a nore appropriate term which is defined on page
36 in paragraph (3).

3:44:19 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 8- April 7, 2014



MS. BLAI SDELL provided a section-by-section analysis of HB 254,
Version U Section 1 would replace the current definition of an

agent . She related that previous terns included "attorney-in-
fact" and other terns that applied to the agent; however, this
bill defines "agent" and replaces the ternms wth "agent."

Section 2, a technical change, <corrects the definition of
"state" to include the U S. Virgin Islands. Section 3 adds new

definitions for "durable,"” "electronic," "power of attorney,"
"principal,” "record,” and "sign" as these terns relate to this
act . She added that "sign" neans, "with present intent to
aut henticate or adopt a record...." She pointed out that somne

i ndividuals suffering from arthritis can barely sign their nane
once and this is intended to be | ess burdensone.

3:45:53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON referred to the new definition for
"durabl e" and asked whether it will it apply to living wills.

M5. BLAI SDELL said the definitions only apply to this act.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD renarked that she particularly liked the
changes on page 3 and 4 since the transactions designating the
power of attorney are broken into categories.

3:46: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled the |ast power of attorney he
was involved in and asked why a power of attorney is not
acceptable in small clains case.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON answered that he was unsure, but the
court has separate civil rules for small clains, which fal
under district court rules.

M5. BLAISDELL related that the definition of "sign" in Section
3, allows the person to adopt a tangible synbol or electronic
sound. Thus, a person could fill out the fornms, she said.

3:48: 28 PM

M5. BLAISDELL stated that Section 4 anmends the statutory form
required to assign a power of attorney, from giving the person
single powers to opt out of each choice, with the intent of
allowing the incapacitated person the opportunity to nake better
choices by helping inform the party what functions are being

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -9- April 7, 2014



signed over. She enphasized that this represents the nost
significant change, which was recommended by the long-term care
onbudsman and sone senior centers, so that one signature doesn't
enconpass and transfer power over every |legal transaction.

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD remarked that she is very excited. She
predi cted that the changes this bill makes will be very hel pful.

3:49: 42 PM

M5. BLAISDELL referred to Section 5, which anends the statutes
that renove the powers to revoke, create, or nodify a trust as a
general authority. Throughout this bill, language "revoke,
create, or anend a trust" is renoved, she said.

M5. BLAI SDELL said three areas nust be specifically initialed or
the agent or agents will not have the power of authority since
these areas can greatly inpact the incapacitated person: first,
for the authority being granted to create, anend, revoke, or
termnate an inter vivos trust; second, for the authority to
make a gift, subject to the limtations of AS 13.26.244 (h) and
any special instructions in this power of attorney; and third

to create or change a beneficiary designation. Agai n, these
three areas may be overarching of sonme of the other areas and
nmust be specifically granted to the agent or agents, she said.

3:50:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to page 4, line 20 and asked
whet her this would be a living trust.

M5. BLAI SDELL answered yes, that an inter vivos trust is used in
estate planning and is also known as a living trust.

3:51:18 PM

M5. BLAI SDELL related that Sections 6-7 renoves "revoke, create
or nodify a trust” since it nust be specified. She related that
Section 8 allows the agent to credit and debit cards. She
clarified that the last tinme the power of attorney statutes were
considered was in 1988 and not everyone had electronic
transactions; thus, this wll nove power of attorney actions
into the 21st Century.

MS. BLAISDELL stated that Section 9 anends existing statute to

conduct additional business related actions to further protect
the interests of the principal; Section 10 anends existing

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -10- April 7, 2014



statute to exercise investnent powers available, which had not
previously been included, and Section 11, on page 16, would
repeal powers for the agent to receive general authority wth
respect to gift transactions.

M5. BLAISDELL said that Section 12 would anend statutes to
further define insurance transactions and allow the power of
attorney to mmke decisions on insurance and issuance paynents

Page 22 relates to provisions for personal representative
authorizations to make child support paynents and assist the
princi pal who normally provided support for someone to continue
to provide it.

3:54: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether an agent would exercise
the authority to allow a person to live in customary support

He asked for clarification on how that would affect the power of
attorney and whether it would take away or expand the authority.
He wondered if the agent would take the power away and "contro

the purse strings."

MS. BLAI SDELL suggested there were two ways to think about it.
First, the principal could select to have the agent take
specific action, such as to only balance the principal's
checkbook. The existing law allows the power of attorney to
mai ntain customary standard of living for the spouse, children

and ot her dependents. She expl ained that [paragraph (1)] added
a child "later born" and she was unsure if it would give nore or
| ess authority. She commented that it could be circunstantia

to the person maki ng the choices.

3:56:41 PM

MS. BLAISDELL referred to page 24, paragraph (15), which notes
that the agent may be privileged to Health Insurance Portability
and Accountability Act ( HI PPA) protected information in
i nstances in which the agent has been asked to take care of sone
of the health care on behalf of the principal. She turned to
page 25, Section 15, which gives the power of attorney or civi
or mlitary service benefits, which has arisen due to the US
i nvol venent in which sone mlitary wth overseas action did not
return home in sane capacity. She referred to page 26, proposed
Section 16, which she said relates to retirenment plans.

M5. BLAISDELL stated that Section 17 relates to the state
recogni zing power of attorney executed in another state so |ong

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -11- April 7, 2014



as it was conpleted under the rules of the other jurisdiction
She explained that Section 18, which was supported by the |ong-
term onbudsman, addresses relieving a power of attorney if the
person conmitted dishonesty with an inproper notive or wth
reckl ess indifference. She explained that previously it wasn't
possi ble to renove a person once they had the power of attorney.

3:59:24 PM
CHAI R OLSON asked for clarification on the nunbering sequence.

MS. BLAI SDELL agreed that she may have started with the origina
bill so the sections didn't match Version U She reported that
Section 19 includes all of the agent's duties, including acting
in good faith, and within the scope of duty granted to an agent.
She reiterated that it describes the duties of an agent, as well
as provisions if a breach of agreenent occurs.

M5. BLAISDELL related that Section 20 replaces "principal"
"incapacity" and "agent" throughout the bill. She characterized
t he changes as being techni cal changes.

4:01: 07 PM

M5. BLAISDELL pointed out that Section 22 identifies how
incapacity is determ ned, including when a principal suffers an
i mpai r ment in his/her ability to receive and evaluate
information or nmake or conmmunicate decisions, or because the
principal is mssing, detained or incarcerated. She stated that
Section 24 explains the acceptance of power of attorney so
agents can better understand their responsibilities on behalf of
t he principal. Section 25 outlines the term nation of power of
attorney and Sections 26 and 27 are technical changes. Section
28 adds additional definitions, including benefits from
government prograns or civil or mlitary service, good faith,
incapacity, and retirenent plans. She summarized the four
primary changes in the bill. It would also revise the formto
make it nore responsive for principals so they can better
understand the authority they are giving the agent. It inproves
the | anguage to renove a power of attorney if the person is not
acting appropriately. It identifies the duties of a power of
attorney. Finally, it changes sone definitions.

4:02:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON acknowl edged the conplexity of famly
aw, noting the frequent use of conservatorship and trustees

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -12- April 7, 2014



He asked how this interacts with those ternms, in particular,
conservatorship, in which soneone has simlar powers, but is
deenmed conservat or

M5. BLAI SDELL answered that she was unsure. She stated that all
definitions were specific to a power of attorney.

4:03:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether a nodel |law was used to
craft the bill or if the sponsor proposed the concept.

M5. BLAISDELL answered that the AARP first suggested the
changes.

4:04: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SHELLEY HUGHES, Al aska State Legislature, stated
that she was first approached by people at the senior center.
She discussed this with AARP and considered uniform | aw changes
and which ones nmade sense in Alaska. She said that the sponsor
has worked with the Association of Miture Anericans, the AARP' s
counterpart, and the organi zation has been supportive. Furt her
she worked with the long-term care onbudsman and the governor's
office and said it is a joint effort. She related that the |ast
substantial work on this section of |aw was done in 1988. About

one in seven Alaskans is age 60 or older. She also pointed out
the inportance of assisting vulnerable Alaskans and helping
children assist their parents. These changes are conpatible

with interstate |laws, which she said was a reason to consider
the effects of the uniform law, especially since it is likely

Al askans will be separated fromtheir parents by a state |ine.
4:07:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD referred to page 3 line 31, subparagraph
(G, estate transactions. She related a scenario in which a
principal requests a wll, but subsequently gives soneone the
ability to handle estate transactions. She also referred to
page 4, line 26-28, that agents can be different agents. She

asked who woul d have the authority.
4:08:31 PM
M5. BLAI SDELL referred to subparagraph (G and pointed out that

page 21, Section 13, identifies the structure for power of
attorney for estate transactions. She recalled the legislative

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -13- April 7, 2014



attorney's explanation that a will is used when a person dies,
and a power of attorney is used when the person is living. The
provisions in a wll mght flip conpletely, versus what the
principal outlines in the power of attorney for the day to day
actions.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON sai d he believed she is correct.

CHAIR OLSON said he likes the bill and he hoped the sectiona
will better match the bill at the next commttee.

4:10: 22 PM

KEN HELANDER, Director for Advocacy, AARP-Al aska, said that he
and his predecessor, Pat Luby, have worked on this issue wth
the sponsor and believes this bill protects the interests of
ol der Al askans. He related that a power of attorney is a |ega
docunment used by an individual, the principal, to name soneone
el se, the agent, to nake financial decisions and to act on the
principal's behalf. He clarified that this is not a health care
power of attorney and it does not offer health care decisions,
but it does authorize planning for the possibility of future
incapacity and avoid the court appointrment of a guardian or
conservat or. He pointed out that a power of attorney is
private, wthout any oversight by a court.

MR. HELANDER said that state |laws are often unclear about the
duty owed by the agent to the principal. Thi s conbi nati on of
broad authority, lack of oversight, and unclear duties makes it
possi ble for agents to msuse their authority. He said power of
attorney abuse, often called a "license to steal,” is a form of
financial exploitation. To help curb this type of elder
financial exploitation, AARP supports state efforts to expand
the power of attorney laws by adopting reforns at |east as
stringent as those outlined in the uniform power of attorney

act . The act contains provisions that aim to pronote autonony
and to prevent power of attorney abuse. The nost inportant of
these provisions pertain to the "hot powers.” Under the current

statute, the principal gives blanket consent to these powers
with a signature unless they intentionally cross them off a
list. This bill, following the wuniform power of attorney
format, requires the principal to opt in by initialing each
speci fic power. This action requires careful consideration as
to the duties being delegated to the agent and |essens the
opportunity for exploitation. Additionally, this bill nore
clearly defines the responsibilities of the agent to protect the
interests of the principal and it sets out guidelines for third

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -14- April 7, 2014



party acceptance. He concluded that the AARP supports HB 254,
Version U, and believes it wll strengthen protection of
vul nerable adults in Al aska. He said that 13 states have
enacted the Uniform Power of Attorney Act, with Hawaii and |owa
awaiting their respective governor's signatures to becone the
14th and 15th states. Connecticut and Kansas are also
consi dering these changes. He encouraged commttee nenbers to
hel p i nclude Al aska on this growing |ist.

4:14:11 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 254.

CHAI R OLSON renoved his objection.

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said he thinks this is a good bill. He
referred to page 3, which requires a principal to initial
certain authorizations that mght be a problemif the person is
truly incapacitated and can't initial. He suggested that these
provi sions mght be dealt with in another comrittee and aren't a
reason to stop the bill.

4:15:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report the proposed comittee
substitute (CS) for HB 254 |abeled 28-LS1057\U, Bannister,
3/ 6/ 14, out of conmttee with individual recommendations and the
acconpanyi ng fiscal notes. There being no objection, the CSHB
254(L&C) was reported fromthe House Labor and Comrerce Standing
Comm ttee.

4:15: 31 PM

The commttee took an at-ease from4:15 p.m to 4:18 p. m

HB 336- ALCOHOL SALES NEAR SCHOOL/ CHURCH

4:18: 17 PM

CHAI R OLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 336, "An Act relating to sales of alcoholic
beverages near a school or church.”

4:18: 29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GERAN TARR, Al aska State Legislature, stated that
HB 336 will increase the buffer between prem ses selling |iquor

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 15- April 7, 2014



and schools or churches from 200 to 400 feet. In response to a
guestion, she acknow edged the bill is not retroactive.

4:19:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked how many facilities currently lie
wi thin 200-400 feet of school or church facilities.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said the departnent only tracks the current
restrictions, which prohibit alcohol sales within 200 feet of
schools or churches. In response to a question, she agreed that
any existing facility would not be affected, but it would [imt
new establishments to 400 feet.

4:20: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT related a scenario in which a church
noves into a mall with a liquor store or bar. He asked how this
bill would affect the existing |iquor store or bar.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered it would be prohibited within 400
feet of the entrance. She explained the cal culations, which my
i nclude wal king to the sidewal k, crossing a street, and resum ng
wal king on a sidewalk so the neasurenments mrror the typical
pathway to travel to and fromthe establishnent.

4:21:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT related a scenario in which a new
charter school noves into a neighborhood strip mall. He asked
whet her the onus would be on the school to find another place or
if the existing al cohol establishnment woul d be displ aced.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered that the charter school would need
to pick a different |ocation.

4:22:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD rel ated that sonme charter schools neet
tenporarily in churches. She asked for clarification on the
measurenent and if it is door to door or fromthe property I|ine.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered by reading |anguage [Section 1,
page 2, lines 13-15], for the restriction, which read: "(B) the
prem ses would be located in a building having a public entrance
within 400 [200] feet of the boundary line of a school or a
church building in which religious services are being regularly

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -16- April 7, 2014



conducted;...." She clarified that current law is 200 feet and
this bill would increase the linmt to 400 feet.

4:23:43 PM

REPRESENTATIVE REINBOLD said that there <could be a big
di fference between door to door and driveway. She asked if the
entrance nmeans the physical entrance or the driveway entrance.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR recalled discussing this point with the
departnment and related that it viewed it as "door to door"™ and
not "as the crow flies" or the shortest distance. It would
include the distance and route a person wuld take to travel
fromone establishnment to the other.

4:24: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked for further clarification that it
woul d be a door to door measurenent.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR agreed. She read [page 2, lines 6-8] of HB
336, which read, "... is nmeasured from the outer boundary Iline
of the school or the public entrance of the church building by
the shortest pedestrian route to the nearest public entrance of
the restaurant or eating place;". She highlighted that the
af orenentioned is existing |anguage in statute and reflects the
current measurenent.

4: 24: 59 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked if a school could waive this.
REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered no. The intent of the bill is to

extend a buffer for all future schools and churches and it woul d
apply to both schools and churches.

4:25:36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = SADDLER expressed concern that this Dbill
represents a statewide solution to a |ocal problem He said
that this bill mght put distance between schools and |iquor
est abl i shnment s, but this Dbill does not address or fix
al cohol i sm It just puts the problem farther out of sight. He

suggested it could be argued that allowing children to see the
effects of alcohol abuse would be a disincentive to take up
dri nki ng. He stated he was glad that bill would only apply to
future construction and is not retroactive. He indicated his

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -17- April 7, 2014



intent and desire is not to have sonmeone cone back to the
| egi sl ature and expand the buffer and require bars be noved. He
acknow edged that the bill would protect sone kids.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR said she appreciated his comments. She
acknowl edged the inportance of not getting ahead of what the
bill mght do. She offered her hope that this bill mght be a
part of a bigger effort on the issues of alcoholism although
this bill does not address it.

4:27: 00 PM

CHAIR COLSON answered that sone of the larger churches have
parking lots which extend to 400 feet. He suggested that 400
feet is probably a good conprom se.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR reported that nost other states have buffers
greater than 200 feet, with 200 feet being at the |low end, and
1,000 feet at upper range. The other states also had a variety
of ways to neasure the distance. She stated that Alaska is on
| oner end for buffers, which is one reason for the bill.

4:27:42 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether the Cabaret, Hotel,
Restaurant & Retailer's Association (CHARR) has taken a position

on this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answer ed no. She said that she has been in

cl ose contact with CHARR and does not want this bill to be anti-
busi ness. She related her wunderstanding that the business
owners are responsible and everyone is trying to work on the
same problens w thout placing fault on anyone. She has kept

CHARR i nformed and to date no one has responded in that way.
CHAIR OLSON surmsed that if the restriction had been increased
to 500 feet or 1,000 feet that someone from CHARR would be
testifying.

4: 28: 58 PM

CHAIR COLSON, after first determining no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 336.

4:29:02 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 18- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD asked whether any church groups have
"wei ghed in" on the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR responded that this bill would affect future
establi shnments, but she checked with churches but since the bil
doesn't directly inpact these churches, it wasn't a concern.

4:29:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD wondered how it affects youth neeting in
churches. She was unsure if the organization woul d be i npact ed.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR referred to page 1, lines 14-15, to |anguage
which states, in part, " ... or a church building in which
religious services are being regularly conducted; ...." She
offered her belief that it is enforced based on a building but
not on church youth mnistry neeting in a building.

4:30: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON asked whether restaurants that serve
beer and wine would be subject to the additional restrictions
under the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR answered yes, for future |ocations near a
school or church

4:31: 06 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON rel ated hi s under st andi ng t hat
establishnments with liquor |icenses shouldn't be located within
400 feet of a school or church. He asked how the bill would
affect a church or a school that wants to nove into a nall. He
wondered if the liquor license could be renewed.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked for clarification on the question.

CHAIR OLSON suggested clarification on the effect of [|iquor
license renewals if a school or church npbves within 400 feet of
an establ i shnent.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR related her wunderstanding that the [|iquor
license owner would not be affected. She clarified that the
owner would be "grandfathered in" as an existing licensee. She
believed it would be the church's responsibility to find a
| ocation that is outside the 400 feet.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -19- April 7, 2014



CHAIR OLSON related his wunderstanding that the church can't
argue against the liquor license renewal if it noved in.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR agr eed. She stated that the church would
need to follow the 400-foot buffer.

4:33:27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON pointed out that the bill doesn't clearly
state this but only discusses the I|iquor prem ses not being
closer than 400 feet to a school or church. He said he

appreciated the intent of the bill.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR explained that [the 200-foot] buffer is
existing statute so it is the way it's being enforced now.  She
surm sed that when the existing statute was passed it nust have
been the nost appropriate way to insert the boundaries.

4:34:35 PM

CHAIR OLSON related his understanding that the bill addresses
rel ocation of the |iquor establishnment to the church.

REPRESENTATI VE HERRON agreed, but referred to Section 2 line 12,
which relates to restriction of |l|ocation near churches and
school s. He asked why this |anguage doesn't also provide a
restriction of |ocation near |iquor stores.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR responded that these changes fall under the
al cohol section of the statutes. Thus, the context is fromthe
perspective of the liquor |icensees and the owner's relationship
with the church and school. She suggested different statutes
m ght focus on the perspective of schools or churches.

The commttee took an at-ease from4:35 p.m to 4:42 p. m
4:42: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = HERRON, as a followup to Representative
Chenault's question, asked whether a church or school nust
consi der being outside a 400-foot buffer from a licensed |iquor
establ i shment under the bill.

SHIRLEY COTE, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board (ABC
Board) , Depar t ment of Conmer ce, Communi ty & Econom ¢
Devel opnent, explained that wunder current law if a |icensed
premse is at a location and a church or school wants to nove

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE - 20- April 7, 2014



within 200 feet of the prem se that the decision would be up to
the church or school to decide. She said that the ABC Board
doesn't have anything in place that would require a |licensee to
nove out of the location since the business was established in
its location prior to the school or church noving in. She said
that the board would nmake those types of decisions and it could
be a consideration at the tinme of Iliquor |license renewal if
obj ections or protests arise. She acknow edged that nechani sns
are in place if issues or problens arise. However, currently if
a church or school has noved within the prohibited buffer zone,
the board has not nmade the |icensee shut down its business.

4:44: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT related his understanding that even if
the | aw changed to 400 feet, if a church chose to |locate within
that distance it would not affect the liquor |icensee unless the

church subsequently decided it didn't like the alcohol sales
nearby and petitioned the ABC Board to try to make I|iquor
license owners nove its establishnent. He asked whether this

has happened or coul d happen.

M5. COTE answered that this has not happened although it doesn't
mean it can't happen. She indicated that every other year
during license renewal any person, including a |ocally governing
body, can object to the renewal and the board would take it
under consi derati on.

4:46: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT asked whether a |arge church could nove
within 200 feet or 400 feet of a liquor establishnent and create
enough | ocal pressure to cause problens for the liquor I|icense
hol der and the establishment could be forced to rel ocate.

M5. COTE said it is a possibility, in particular, if issues or
problens |ater arose, that the church could come to the board
and it would consider the issue during renewal, although she did
not recall any situation where that has happened.

4:47:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHENAULT recalled reading in an Anchorage paper
that a liquor store was having problens, but he was unsure if it
was a church, school, or local community that had objected. He
did not recall the details but he inagined that public testinony
woul d be consi dered by the board.

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -21- April 7, 2014



M5. COTE recalled situations in which a |icensed prem se would
be well outside the 200 feet but noted if the public outcry has

been substantial the liquor license renewal has not been
approved. She noted that this type of action could happen
regardl ess of the distance to a school or church.

4:48: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER related his understanding that a church
could raise issues which could affect liquor I|icense renewal
However, this bill addresses a geographical distance. He

wondered if a church noved within 200 or 400 feet of a business
if the business and church could coexist just fine, but during
the license renewal mmy raise an objection. He asked whet her
t he af orementi oned objection could be based solely on proximty.

M5. COTE answered yes. She said that even with a new I|iquor
| i cense application objections could certainly be raised.

REPRESENTATI VE SADDLER asked whether anything in state statute
other than renewal provisions would ban a church from noving
into within 200 or 400 feet of [a bar].

MS. COTE answered that is correct.

4:49: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD recalled that [|ocal governnment has
bought out space in malls. She related a scenario in which
governnment entities, such as a school district or perhaps a
preschool noves into a nall. She asked whether this would

i npact preschools and if preschools are considered school s.

M5. COTE said preschools are considered schools. In further
response to a question, M. Cote indicated if the licensed
prem ses were already on |ocation and the school or church noved
in, it would be the school or church's decision to do so. She
indicated that in her experience |icensees do not want to |ose
their liquor licenses so the owners tend to work to address any
i ssues. She said if a school subsequently raised an issue about
any prem se that ABC Board would consider the issue at the tine
of the liquor |icense renewal.

4:52:16 PM

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -22- April 7, 2014



REPRESENTATI VE REINBOLD conmented that it is inportant to
address this issue and identify any parties inpact ed.

4:52:43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOSEPHSON said it seens as though a school or
church could decide to locate within 400 feet of a |iquor
establishment, but it couldn't then question the prem se selling
liquor located within 400 feet of the school. However, the
school could raise sone other issue at the tine of the |iquor
license renewal. He reiterated that the school or church

couldn't raise the proximty argunent since it was created by
t he school or church

MS. COTE answered yes; however, the school could raise the issue
if a problem arises. She said that the board would work wth
the licensee to correct any problem for exanple, if conplaints
arose that underage persons were being served. She said that it
woul d take a great deal to revoke an active liquor license on a
mere objection. She said, "I nean it just doesn't happen.”

4:54:50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD noved to report HB 336 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
not e. There being no objection, HB 336 was reported from the
House Labor and Commrerce Standing Comrttee.

4:55: 08 PM

ADJ OURNMENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
Labor and Commerce Standing Conmttee neeting was adjourned at
4:55 p. m

HOUSE L&C COW TTEE -23- April 7, 2014



